
 

 Page 1 

 

 
 
 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

Meadow Room, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076 

Saturday, May 21, 2016 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

A. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Roll Call 
 

Bill Lyons (H40) President     Jim Griffin (P9) Director 

Bob Moore (P45) Vice President David Bower (P48) Director 

Wendy Cumming, Clerk/Accountant/Secretary  Raul Deju (CY4) Director 

 

B. MEMBER COMMENTS  

 
Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda, may be addressed by members of 

the public before the Board for consideration. However, California law prohibits the Board from taking 

action on any matter which is not on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the 

Board of PDGHAD. Any person wishing to address the Board during the Member Comment period shall 

be permitted to be heard for up to 3 minutes, A) individuals may speak only once and B) the Board is unable 

to address any owner comments in depth, but may choose to direct the Clerk to follow-up on the matter for 

a future meeting. 

 

C. PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 

 
The President will use this opportunity to inform the public of issues affecting the District and other 

items of a general nature not otherwise provided for on this agenda.  

 Update on the Coastal Commission application, and Santa Cruz County interaction 

 Economic Impact report update 

 Sand removal  - Neighbor dispute 

 FEMA 

 Meeting Calendar 

 Subcommittee on assessment election 

 Report on attorney fees allocated to Zone 2 for last fiscal year, and the current fiscal year. 

 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board of Directors and 

will be enacted by one motion at the appropriate time. There will be no separate discussion on these 

items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and will be 

considered separately.  
 

1. Approval of minutes March 12, 2016  

1



 

 Page 2 

 

 

E. TREASURER’S REPORT  

 
2. Financial Reports  

 Ten month period ended April 30, 2016 

 Warrant listing 

 Accept reports by motion 

 

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
3. Finance and Budget Committee (Bill Lyons/Wendy Cumming) 

4.  Community Membership and Relations Committee (Bill Lyons/Bob Moore) 

5.  Seawall Application and Repair Committee (Jim Griffin/David Bower) 

6.  Meetings attended by Directors at District expense since the last meeting of the Board (per                 

AB1234 requirements). Such reports may be made orally or in writing.  

  

G. NEW BUSINESS  

 
7. ITEM – Consider proposals for audit services for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 

a. Board report  

b. Public comment  

c. Board discussion  

d. Board action  

 

8. ITEM – Consider adopting draft budget for the fiscal period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 

a. Board report  

b. Public comment  

c. Board discussion  

d. Board action  

 

9. ITEM – Consider taking action to provide direction to the Seawall Application and Repair  

                  Committee to work with staff to prepare documents for 2016 Assessment Election for 

county processing costs  
a. Board report  

b. Public comment  

c. Board discussion  

d. Board action 

 

H. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

 

Members of the Board of Directors may address items of concern at this time, and may request that 

items be placed on future agendas in accordance with the By-laws of the Board. 

 

2



 

 Page 3 

 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT  

 

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for June 11, 2016, at 9:00 a.m. at the 

offices of the Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District, Meadow Room, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 

Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076. Individuals who require special accommodations are requested 

to contact the District Clerk by calling (831) 761-7744, no less than 72 hours prior to the meeting or in 

the case of a Special Meeting, as soon as possible after the Agenda is posted. Copies of the agenda will 

be available 72 hours prior to the meeting and may be obtained by contacting the District at (831) 761-

7744. All meetings are noticed and conducted in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

3



 

 Page 1 

 

 
 
 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

Meadow Room, Pajaro Dunes, 2661 Beach Road, Watsonville, CA 95076 

Saturday, March 12, 2016 9:00 a.m. 

 

 

A. OPEN SESSION CALL TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Roll Call 
 

Bill Lyons (H40) President (Calling in from 4552 Morse Ave., Studio City, CA (209) 531-4077) Present 

Jim Griffin (Director)(P9) - Absent 

Bob Moore (P45) Vice President - Present David Bower (Director)(P48) - Present 

Wendy Cumming, Clerk/Accountant/Secretary – Present Raul Deju (Director)(CY4) - Present 

 

 

B. MEMBER COMMENTS  

 
Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda, may be addressed by members of 

the public before the Board for consideration. However, California law prohibits the Board from taking 

action on any matter which is not on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the 

Board of PDGHAD. Any person wishing to address the Board during the Member Comment period shall 

be permitted to be heard for up to 3 minutes, A) individuals may speak only once and B) the Board is unable 

to address any owner comments in depth, but may choose to direct the Clerk to follow-up on the matter for 

a future meeting. 

 

No comments 

C. PRESIDENT’S REMARKS 

 
The President will use this opportunity to inform the public of issues affecting the District and other 

items of a general nature not otherwise provided for on this agenda.  

 Update on the Coastal Commission application, and Santa Cruz County interaction 

 Economic Impact report update 

 Sand removal  - Neighbor dispute 

 Banking relationship 

 Subcommittee on assessment election 

 

President Bill Lyons commented as follows: 

 

Regarding the Coastal Commission application, ARUP has submitted the GHAD application for a 

permit from the Coastal Commission. It appears that there has been progress. The committee is 

planning to meet with the County Planning dept. later this month. The committee plans to stress to the 

County that this is a repair and maintenance project and will involve removing the rocks on the beach.  

 

4



 

 Page 2 

 

Raul Deju commented that the County has been difficult to deal with. The District has responded to 

the issues and the questions. The questions are not complicated. The only one that needs to be resolved 

is the issue of the County having to sign off. All other agencies that are affected have signed off. The 

District expects to have a response from the CCC within 90 days of submitted the response.  

 

Bill Lyons commented on the Economic Impact Report. The updated version has not yet been 

completed. The report is expected to be completed within the next three weeks. 

 

Bill Lyons commented on the sand removal and the neighbor dispute. PDA asked if ARUP the engineer 

of record for an estimate to review the site and provide an opinion. The cost would be between $600-

$1,000, with the cost born by the property owner. Per Raul Deju ARUP would need to go through the 

existing contract with the District, since the PDA and the parties involved are not under a contract. 

Further they would need to have a signed legal letter absolving the District from any responsibility.  

Ken Stephens  felt that the conflict of interest is a concern. Steve Broch commented that when an owner 

wants to make changes to the front of the home that the owner did not have the expertise for moving 

land in front of their home. David Bower felt that this is a PDA issue and should not involve the 

District. Raul Deju commented that no one should move remove rocks or anchor anything to the 

seawall. Bill Lyons commented that this is not an issue we need to deal with today, and this was just 

an update. David Bower requested that the houses identified, which are house numbers 13 and 12. This 

was discussed in the prior meeting.  

 

On the banking relationship, Bill Lyons commented that he has asked Wendy and Mike to work with 

the bank, and that the relationship has been good.   

 

Bill Lyons commented that with the District application having been submitted, and has asked the 

David Bower and Jim Griffin to be a part of the assessment election. David commented that the District 

would need to have the assessment election completed and submitted to the County no later than 

August 1, 2016, in order to make the assessment roles, and this would not happen this current fiscal 

year. Fiscal years 2017/2018 would be more likely.  Per Raul Deju, come the 2018 year the existing 

loans would be paid off, except for one, and the assessment at that time would be comparable to what 

is being paid now.  

 

 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR  

 
All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board of Directors and 

will be enacted by one motion at the appropriate time. There will be no separate discussion on these 

items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and will be 

considered separately.  
 

1. Approval of minutes December 12, 2015  

 

 

Motion by David Bower, seconded by Raul Deju, approved by all except Jim Griffin, who was 

absent.  

 

 

 

 

 

5



 

 Page 3 

 

E. TREASURER’S REPORT  

 
2. Financial Reports  

 Eight month period ended February 29, 2016 

 Warrant listing 

 Accept reports by motion 

 

David Bower had a question regarding the legal fee assigned to the Zone 2. Clerk Wendy Cumming 

will research the legal fees. Steve Broch, asked about the audit report on page 24, from the prior fiscal 

year and the legal fees on Zone 1 and 2. He wanted to know why there are legal expense for Zone 2. 

Clerk/Accountant will report back. Bob Moore asked that an item be placed on the agenda for the May 

meeting. 

 

Mary Paige asked about the emergency funds in account in the emergency reserve account bank 

account and asked what the use was. Per the clerk/accountant the costs were technical costs from 

ARUP. Per Raul Deju the costs were allowable under the original assessment documents.  

 

Motion by Raul Deju, seconded by David Bower, approved by all, except Jim Griffin.  

 

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
3. Finance and Budget Committee (Bill Lyons/Wendy Cumming) 

4.  Community Membership and Relations Committee (Bill Lyons/Bob Moore) 

5.  Seawall Application and Repair Committee (Jim Griffin/David Bower) 

6.  Meetings attended by Directors at District expense since the last meeting of the Board (per                 

AB1234 requirements). Such reports may be made orally or in writing.  

  

No meetings  

 

G. NEW BUSINESS  

 
7. ITEM – Approval of the ARUP Task Proposal pursuant to the terms of the 2012 Contract for 

Professional Services between PDGHAD and ARUP  

a. Board report  

b. Public comment  

c. Board discussion  

d. Board action  

 

Raul Deju commented the District has received a proposal from ARUP for working with the County 

on the Coastal Commission repair permit. ARUP will prepare a new engineer allocation report. David 

Bower commented that PHA has already raised money for the inspection of the riverwall and that Zone 

2 should not incur expenses for ARUP to charge for the riverwall. The language in the proposal should 

be changed to just “seawall” and not “riverwall”. Raul recommended that the District approve for the 

proposal except for the inspection of the seawall. David Bower commented that if Raul Deju is 

comfortable with the proposal, than he was I favor. Bill Lyons commented that he is in support of the 

proposal, except for the inspection due to the lack of activity on the wall.  

 

6



 

 Page 4 

 

Motioned by Raul Deju and seconded by David Bower, authorizing the approval of the ARUP Task 

Proposal to complete task 1, 2, and 3., less the seawall maintenance fees. Also the language should 

only include the inspection for the seawall, not the riverwall.  

 

H. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND CONCERNS 

 

Members of the Board of Directors may address items of concern at this time, and may request that 

items be placed on future agendas in accordance with the By-laws of the Board. 

David Bower commented that he had walked the seawall and noticed an outfall pipe that is draining 

directly on the seawall. Raul Deju commented that the pipe should be removed. David further 

commented that the pipe needs to be removed. An audience member said the issue should be forwarded 

to the design committee. David Bower requested the clerk should forward the issue to the Design 

committee.  

I. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Motion for adjournment by David Bower seconded by Raul Deju, approved by all, except Jim Griffin.  

 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 10:12 a.m. 

 

Attest:____________________________________ 

 Wendy Cumming 

 Clerk of the Board 

 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard 

 Abatement District  

 

 

7



 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District

 Balance Sheet
 As of April 30, 2016

Apr 30, 16

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

100000 · SCCB Zone 1 - 3957 8,601.22 Note - GHAD owes $15k in

100001 · SCCB Zone 2 - 3965 62,089.78 rock that is held at Granite

100002 · SCCB Z1 Emerg - 1877 23,221.20 Rock for future use.

100003 · SCCB LTD-  0208 57,378.68

100400 · Union Bank Bond Holding 300,343.18

Total Checking/Savings 451,634.06

Accounts Receivable

120000 · Assessments Receivable 95,595.53

120500 · Assess. Rec. Delinquent 11,246.53

Total Accounts Receivable 106,842.06

Other Current Assets

121500 · Prepaid Insurance 15,720.00

Total Other Current Assets 15,720.00

Total Current Assets 574,196.12

Fixed Assets

150000 · Riverwall 3,000,000.00

160000 · Accumulated Depreciation -1,133,330.00

Total Fixed Assets 1,866,670.00

TOTAL ASSETS 2,440,866.12

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

200000 · Accounts Payable 12,184.26

Total Accounts Payable 12,184.26

Other Current Liabilities

220000 · Accrued Interest 16,975.69

255000 · Unearned Revenue 39,187.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 56,162.69

Total Current Liabilities 68,346.95

Long Term Liabilities

260000 · NP SCCB (439k) Loan 170,279.44

261000 · NP SCCB (198k) Loan 46,154.81

263000 · SCCB Emergency Loan Z1 21,433.69

285000 · Bonds Payable Z2 1,445,000.00

286000 · Bonds Payable Discount Z2 -52,250.00

286500 · Amort. Bond Discount Z2 23,161.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,653,778.94

Total Liabilities 1,722,125.89

Equity

30000 · Opening Balance Equity 607,355.35

32000 · Retained Earnings 89,202.21

8



 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District

 Balance Sheet
 As of April 30, 2016

Apr 30, 16

Net Income 22,182.67

Total Equity 718,740.23

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,440,866.12

9



 1:29 PM

 05/13/16

 Accrual Basis

 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2015 through April 2016

Zone 1 Zone 2 TOTAL

Jul '15 - Apr 16 Budget $ Over Budget Jul '15 - Apr 16 Budget $ Over Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

410000 · Assessment Income 161,067               161,067         -                      204,445               204,445         -                      

410050 · Assess. Income PDA Stairs 5,787                   5,787            0                         1,969                   1,948            21                       

Total Income 166,854               166,854         0                         206,414               206,393         21                       

Expense

610155 · Postage and Mailings 26                        250               (224)                    5                          200               (195)                    

615115 · Office Expense 5                          580               (575)                    -                       

615140 · Audit Expense 7,650                   6,500            1,150                  50                        50                 -                      

615415 · Accounting/Clerk Expense 19,484                 25,000          (5,516)                 3,689                   3,944            (255)                    

615617 · Website Maintenance 1,500                   1,500            -                      -                       

615650 · Officer Election 150                      -                150                     150                      -                150                     

615655 · Dues 149                      149                     -                       25                 (25)                      

615656 · Board/Clerk Education -                       750               (750)                    -                       

616500 · Legal Fees 14,524                 5,834            8,690                  4,096                   1,666            2,430                  

616525 · Econ. Study 3,000                   3,000                  -                       

619010 · Technical Consulting Costs 43,893                 43,893                -                       

628500 · Insurance Expense 7,500                   7,500            -                      3,330                   3,334            (4)                        

629030 · SBA Repayment to PHA Z2 -                       77,380                 77,380          -                      

750000 · Depreciation Expense Z2 -                       83,330                 83,334          (4)                        

Total Expense 97,880                 47,914          49,966                172,030               169,933         2,097                  

Net Ordinary Income 68,974                 118,940         (49,966)               34,384                 36,460          (2,076)                 

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

410070 · Interest Income 159                      42                 117                     151                      124               27                       

Total Other Income 159                      42                 117                     151                      124               27                       

Other Expense

855000 · Interest Expense 15,146                 15,146          -                      64,600                 64,600          -                      

955500 · Interest Bond Discount -                       1,740                   1,740            -                      

Total Other Expense 15,146                 15,146          -                      66,340                 66,340          -                      

Net Other Income (14,987)                (15,104)         117                     (66,189)                (66,216)         27                       

Net Income 53,987                 103,836         (49,849)               (31,804)                (29,756)         (2,048)                 

 Page 3 of 5

10



 1:29 PM

 05/13/16

 Accrual Basis

 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July 2015 through April 2016

Zone 1

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

410000 · Assessment Income

410050 · Assess. Income PDA Stairs

Total Income

Expense

610155 · Postage and Mailings

615115 · Office Expense

615140 · Audit Expense

615415 · Accounting/Clerk Expense

615617 · Website Maintenance

615650 · Officer Election

615655 · Dues

615656 · Board/Clerk Education

616500 · Legal Fees

616525 · Econ. Study

619010 · Technical Consulting Costs

628500 · Insurance Expense

629030 · SBA Repayment to PHA Z2

750000 · Depreciation Expense Z2

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

410070 · Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

855000 · Interest Expense

955500 · Interest Bond Discount

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

TOTAL

Jul '15 - Apr 16 Budget $ Over Budget

365,512               365,512         -                      

7,756                   7,735            21                       

373,268               373,247         21                       

31                        450               (419)                    

5                          580               (575)                    

7,700                   6,550            1,150                  

23,172                 28,944          (5,772)                 

1,500                   1,500            -                      

300                      -                300                     

149                      25                 124                     

-                       750               (750)                    

18,620                 7,500            11,120                

3,000                   -                3,000                  

43,893                 -                43,893                

10,830                 10,834          (4)                        

77,380                 77,380          -                      

83,330                 83,334          (4)                        

269,910               217,847         52,063                

103,358               155,400         (52,042)               

310                      166               144                     

310                      166               144                     

79,746                 79,746          -                      

1,740                   1,740            -                      

81,486                 81,486          -                      

(81,176)                (81,320)         144                     

22,183                 74,080          (51,897)               

 Page 4 of 5

11



 1:48 PM

 05/13/16

 Accrual Basis

 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District

 Bank Account Activity
 As of April 30, 2016

Type Date Num Name Debit Credit Balance

100000 · SCCB Zone 1 - 3957 41,147.82

Bill Pmt -Check 03/10/2016 1256 ARUP North America, LTD 29,300.00 11,847.82

Bill Pmt -Check 03/10/2016 1257 Jarvis, Fay, Doporto & Gibson, LLP 951.60 10,896.22

Bill Pmt -Check 03/10/2016 1258 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA 2,295.00 8,601.22

Total 100000 · SCCB Zone 1 - 3957 0.00 32,546.60 8,601.22

100001 · SCCB Zone 2 - 3965 156,386.98

Bill Pmt -Check 03/10/2016 1226 Jarvis, Fay, Doporto & Gibson, LLP 268.40 156,118.58

Bill Pmt -Check 03/10/2016 1225 Pajaro Dunes Geologic Abatement District 85,885.80 70,232.78

Bill Pmt -Check 03/10/2016 1224 Pelican Home Owner's Association 7,738.00 62,494.78

Bill Pmt -Check 03/10/2016 1223 Wendy L. Cumming, CPA 405.00 62,089.78

Total 100001 · SCCB Zone 2 - 3965 0.00 94,297.20 62,089.78

100002 · SCCB Z1 Emerg - 1877 23,217.33

Deposit 03/31/2016 1.97 23,219.30

Deposit 04/30/2016 1.90 23,221.20

Total 100002 · SCCB Z1 Emerg - 1877 3.87 0.00 23,221.20

100003 · SCCB LTD-  0208 57,369.12

Deposit 03/31/2016 4.86 57,373.98

Deposit 04/30/2016 4.70 57,378.68

Total 100003 · SCCB LTD-  0208 9.56 0.00 57,378.68

100400 · Union Bank Bond Holding 338,339.43

Check 03/01/2016 atm Union Bank 37,996.25 300,343.18

Total 100400 · Union Bank Bond Holding 0.00 37,996.25 300,343.18

TOTAL 13.43 164,840.05 451,634.06

 Page 5 of 5

12



 

 
 
 
 
May 4, 2016 
 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Pajaro Dunes Geologic Hazard Abatement District 
Watsonville, California 
 
Re:  Audit Fee for the Year Ending June 30, 2016 
 
 
At the request of Wendy Cumming, we are pleased to confirm that our fee for the audit of the District 
for the year ending June 30, 2016 would again be $7,700. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue working with the District. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
HUTCHINSON AND BLOODGOOD LLP 
 

 
Karen Semingson, CPA 
Partner 
 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



DRAFT PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT - ZONE 1

BUDGET FOR FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

  404823 404830 404847

Operating Ln. 1&2 Ln. 3,4,LOC

FUNDING SOURCES FOR ZONE 1 Assessment Assess. Assess.

Property Assessments: 177,046$        

     From Members 171,818          

     From PDA for Stairways 5,228              

     Interest income 50                   

Total Revenue for Zone 1 177,096          

EXPENDITURES FOR ZONE 1

Insurance 9,000              9,000             

Legal Consultant 7,000              7,000             

Website maintenance/annual fee 3,090              3,090             

Postage/shipping/office supplies 1,000              1,000             

Officer election 1,000              1,000             

Audit Fees 7,700              7,700             

Assessment Administration 8,000              8,000             

Accounting/Clerk Contract 21,000            21,000           

Board and Clerk training 1,000              1,000             
 

     Total Administrative Costs 58,790            58,790           

Debt Service:

Loan payments ($198,000 to year 2017) 32,516            32,516       

Loan payment ($439,000 to year 2019) 62,386            62,386            

Loan payment ($200,000 to year 2016) 23,404            23,404            

     Sub Total 118,306           

Total Expenditures for Zone 1 177,096          58,790           32,516       85,790            

Net Change in Fund Balance -$               
 

 

County Object Number

25



DRAFT PAJARO DUNES GEOLOGIC HAZARD ABATEMENT DISTRICT - ZONE 2

BUDGET FOR FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

REVENUE FOR ZONE 2

Property Assessments 247,554                    

     Pelican 245,604                    

     Total PDA for stairway 1,950                        

Interest 150                           

Total Revenue for Zone 2 247,704                    

EXPENDITURES FOR ZONE 2

Administrative Costs

Insurance 4,000                        

Legal Consultant 2,000                        

Officer Election 1,000                        

Postage/office supplies 250                           

Dues and subscriptions 25                             

Audit Fees 50                             

Contract for Assessment Administration 1,000                        

Accountant/Clerk Contract 4,003                        

     Total Administrative Costs 12,328                       

Loan Payments

SBA Loan Payment 92,856                      

Payment on bond issue (82 members) 142,520                    

     Total loan payments 235,376                    

Total Expenditures for Zone 2 247,704                    

Net Change in Fund Balance -                            

5/13/2016     3:24 PM

26



DATE: May 17, 2016 
 
TO:  Board of the Pajaro Dunes Geological Hazard Abatement District 
    
FROM: Michael F. Rodriquez, District Counsel 
   
RE:  Direction to the Seawall Application and Repair Committee to Work with Staff to 
  Prepare Documents for 2016 Assessment Election for County Processing Costs 
 
 
By way of background, Bill Lyons, Raul Deju, Jeff Dunn and I met with County Planning 
Director Kathy Previsich, County Geologist Joe Hanna and County Civil Engineer Carolyn 
Burke on March 30, 2016 at the County offices in Santa Cruz to discuss the District’s proposed 
Seawall Repair Project (the “Project”).  As you will recall, County approval of the Project is a 
prerequisite to the Coastal Commission’s approval and issuance of necessary Seawall Repair 
permits.  
 
After lengthy discussion, County Planning Staff made it clear that the Project will need to be 
processed through the County’s Planning Commission.  At a minimum, this will entail the 
submission of a project application, completion of an analysis of the Project pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), consideration for and issuance of a grading 
permit, and at least one appearance before the County Planning Commission.  All of these tasks 
may necessitate the need for the retention of additional consultants, and will require the deposit 
of application processing fees and the execution of a reimbursement agreement with the County. 
The County is supposed to provide the District with a list of application requirements and fees.  
 
CEQA will require the District to establish a “lead agency” for the Project, basically the public 
entity responsible for ushering the Project through the environmental process.  Given the 
District’s lack of a true planning staff, it appears likely that we will need to contract with the 
County to act as lead agency.  The County would be charged with preparing the environmental 
analysis of the Project.  The County has staff members who can prepare the necessary analysis, 
and using the County will enable the District to avoid delays associated with retaining an 
environmental consultant.  (Preparing and issuing a Request for Proposals, analyzing the 
proposals, selecting a consultant and then awarding a contract.)    
 
Finally, the above-referenced District representatives and consultants believe that the Board 
should consider retaining a consultant to help the District get through the Planning Commission 
approval process.  Using an individual familiar with County procedures and Staff requirements 
should help to expedite the approval process. 
 
The District currently has no funds budgeted for the unanticipated costs associated with 
processing the Seawall Project with the County, and no available unencumbered funding sources.  
As such, it will be necessary for the District to assess property owners for such costs.  Although 
at the time of this writing we do not have County estimates for application, consulting and 
processing costs, Staff is recommending that the Board authorize and direct the Seawall 
Application and Repair Committee to oversee and provide Staff with direction in the preparation 

27



To: Board of the Pajaro Dunes Geological Hazard Abatement District 
Date: May 17, 2016 
Page: 2 
 
 
of necessary ballots and related materials for an assessment election to take place prior to August 
of 2016.  We should have estimates for the variety of project related costs, including but not 
limited to the matters set forth above, within the next few weeks to bring before the Board for 
consideration in setting the proposed new assessment. 

28


	GHAD AGENDA 5 21 2016 Regular Meeting.pdf
	GHAD Minutes 3 12 2016 Regular Meeting.pdf
	GHAD FS April.pdf
	H& B Audit Letter 06.30.16.pdf
	Jolly audit prop..pdf
	GHAD  Z1 Fiscal Jun. 2017 budget.pdf
	GHAD Z2 FYE Jun 2017 budget.pdf
	Memo to Board re Seawall 5-17-16.pdf

